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CROYDON (GP1} LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
Year ended 31 December 2020

The Directors submit their report and the audited financial statements for Croydon (GP1) Limited (the
“Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies
subject to the small companies' regime and consequently no Strategic Report has been prepared.

1.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is that of an investment helding company in the United
Kingdom. The Company has an indirect controlling interest in the Whitgift Limited Partnership
{the “Whitgift LP") and also acts as the General Partner to the Croydon Limited Partnership (the
“Croydon LP"), which are both property investment and development partnerships.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Performance during the year

The carrying value of the Company’s investments and equity lcan receivable are linked to the
underlying value of the Croydon LP and the Whitgift LP (the “Partnerships”). The Covid-19
pandemic has been unprecedented and has had a significant impact on the Partnerships’
businesses, with footfall levels significantly below 2019 levels due to the closure of all non-
essential retail during continued periods of national and local lockdown.

The asset management teams have worked hard to reach fair and reasonable agreements with
tenants, offering flexible repayment terms or rent waivers where appropriate. In spite of the
proactive measures taken, rent collection was significantly below historic levels,

Net rental income for the Partnerships reduced principally as a result of increased provisioning
due to the higher level of arrears and increased uncertainty as a consequence of the pandemic.
Car park income, commercialisation income and turnover rents all fell due to the closure of the
majority of stores in periods of Covid-19 lockdown during the year.

Reduced income levels together with an outward yield movement have reduced the
Partnerships' property valuations. This reflects store closures during the lockdown periods and
reduced leasing volumes, further exacerbated by increased levels of CVAs and administrations.

The Company’s indirect investment in the Whitgift LP was impaired during the year by
£1,307,000 (2019: £113,000). The Company’s investment in, and equity loan receivable from,
the Croydon LP were not considered impaired as at 31 December 2020. Net finance costs of
£163,000 (2018: £128,000) consist primarily of amounts payable to related parties.

Future prospects

The impact of Covid-19 has extended into 2021. The roll-out of a vaccination programme
together with the lifting of Covid-19 restrictions should lead to a recovery as workers and
shoppers return to the shopping centres. However, any significant re-emergence of Covid-19 or
new variants thereof could also result in the imposition of further restrictions.

it is anticipated the Partnerships’ net rental income levels and property valuations will remain
challenged in 2021.

The Directors do not anticipate any significant change in the Company’s or the Partnerships’
principal activities in the foreseeable future.
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3. RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss for the year after tax was £1,841,000 (2019: £243,000). The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the year (2019: £nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had net current liabilities of £162,000 (2019: £19,000)
and net liabilities of £2,381,000 (2019: £540,000).

4. DIRECTORS

(a} Mr. J.A. Hodes was a Director of the Company throughout the year and was in office at the date
of approvatl of this report.

(b} Mr. W.S. Austin and Mr. M.R. Bourgeois were Directors of the Company throughout the year
and resigned as Directors of the Company on 11 November 2021.

(c) Miss. A. Beattie was an Aiternate Director of the Company throughout the year and was in office
at the date of approval of this report.

(d) Mr. W.S Austin and Mr. M.R. Bourgeois were Alternate Directars of the Company throughout the
year and resigned as Alternate Directors of the Company on 11 November 2021.

(e) Mr. S.C. Parsons was appointed as a Director of the Company on 31 March 2020 and was in
office at the date of approval of this report.

(f) Mr. O. Bossard resigned as both a Director and an Alternate Director of the Company on
31 March 2020.

(q) Mr. H.A. Badham and Mr. G. Peureux were appointed as Directors of the Company on
11 November 2021 and were in office at the date of approval of this report.

(h} In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, the Directors are not required to
retire by rotation.

(i} No Director has any interests in contracts entered into by the Company.
5. SECRETARY
Hammerson Company Secretarial Limited was Secretary of the Company throughout the year.

6. GOING CONCERN

The Directors have considered the use of the going concern basis in the preparation of the
financial statements in light of the net current liability and net liability position on the balance
sheet as at 31 December 2020 and having taken into account the existing and anticipated
effects of Covid-19 and the letter of support received from Croydon Management Services
Limited, concluded that it was appropriate.

The letter of support states the intent to provide the necessary financial support to ensure the
Company is a going concern for at least 12 months from the date of signing of these financial
statements. More information is provided in note 1(b) to the financial statements.
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T.

INDEMNITY

Each Director of the Company shall be indemnified by the Company against all liabilities, costs and
expenses incurred in the execution and discharge of their duties. Hammerson plc, one of the
ultimate controlling parties, has put in place qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit
of all the Directors of the Company which were in place throughout the year and remain in place at
the date of this report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP shall be deemed to be re-appointed as auditors for a further term
under the provisions of section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicated their willingness to continue in office.

STATEMENT QF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law the Directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland”, and applicable law}.

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit
or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are
required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102,
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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10. DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons who are Directors of the Company at the time when this report is approved
has confirmed that:

» 50 far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
Company’s auditors are unaware, and

» the Director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Director in order
to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of that information.

On behalf of the Board

P

H.A. Badham
Director
Registered Number: 08351560

Date: 20 December 2021



Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Croydon (GP1) Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, Croydon (GP1) Limited's financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its loss and cash flows for
the year then ended;

s have heen properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practice (United
Kingdem Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law); and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the "Annual Report”),
which comprise: the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020; the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, and the cash flow statement for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fuifilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Emphasis of matter - True and fair override — consolidated financial statements

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we draw attention to note 1(a) to these financial
statements, which describes the true and fair override taken by the Directors in not preparing consolidated financiai
statements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties reiating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of
at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.



However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the company's
ability to continue as a going concemn.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other intormation and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibitities.

With respect to the Directors' Report, we aiso considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006
have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions
and matters as described below.

Directors' Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Directors' Report for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

in light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment cbtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Directors' Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually



or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compiiance with laws
and regulations related to tax legislation, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect
on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent
manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks
were related to posting inappropriate journal entries and management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures
performed by the engagement team included:

+ Discussions with management and those charged with governance, including consideration of any known or suspected
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud;

» Reviewing minutes of meetings of these charged with governance;

+ Performing procedures over any unusual journal entries;

+ Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability into our testing;

e Challenging assumptions made by management in determining their judgements and accounting estimates; and

« Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions refiected in the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,
or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the cpinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’'s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

* we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.



Entitlement to exemptions

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the directors were not entitled to: prepare
financial statements in accordance with the small companies regime; take advantage of the small companies exemption in
preparing the Directors' Report; and take advantage of the small companies exemption frem preparing a strategic report. We
have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

(aﬂy(- M‘kw\y-,

Robert Wilkinson (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouscCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

20 December 2021



CROYDON {GP1) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Administrative expenses

Increase in impairment provision on investments
Operating loss

Net finance costs

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

Tax charge

Loss on ordinary activities after taxation and total

comprehensive expense for the financial year

All amounts relate to continuing activities.

Notes

4(a)

2020 2018
£'000 £000
(368) (2)
(1,307) (113)
{1,675) (115)
(163) (128)
(1.838) {243)
(3) -
(1,841) (243)




CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2020

Non-current assets
Investments
Receivables

Current assets
Receivables
Cash and deposits

Current liabilities
Payables

Net current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Payables

Net liabilities

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Accumulated losses

Total deficit

Notes

5(a)

10

12
13

20
£'000

1,707
280

1,987

(2,149)

20 2019
£'000 £°000 £000
3,972 5,279
1,178 1,357
5150 6,636
1,723
655
2,378
{2.397)
162 {19)
4,988 6,617
(7,369) (7.157)
(2,381) 540
250 250
{2,631) {790)
(2,381} 540

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors and were signed on its

behalf on 20 December 2021.

,/’L?.MT(’S'

H.A. Badham
Director
Registered Number: 08351560
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CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2019

Loss and total comprehensive expense for
the financial year

At 31 December 2018

Loss and total comprehensive expense for
the financial year

At 31 December 2020

Called up
share Accumulated Total
capital losses deficit
£'000 £'000 £'000
250 (547) (297)
- (243) (243)
250 (790) {540j
- {1,841) (1,841)
250 (2,631) (2,381)

11



CROYDOCN (GP1) LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Operating activities
Operating loss (1,675) (115)
Increase in receivables (334) (820)
(Decrease)/Increase in payables (36) 703
Non-cash items’ 1,670 113
Cash used in cperations (375} {119)
interest received - 2
Cash flows used in operating activities (375) {117)
Decrease in cash and deposits in the year (375) (117)
Opening cash and deposits 655 772
Closing cash and deposits 280 655

1

The adjustment for non-cash items includes the impairment of amounts due from related party undertakings of
£363,000 (2019: £nil) and the increase in impairment provision on investments of £1,307,000 (2019: £113,000).



CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.

(a)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following principal accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the
current and preceding year, uniess stated otherwise.

Basis of accounting

Basis of preparation

Croydon (GP1) Limited is a private company limited by shares and incorporated in the United
Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006. The nature of the Company’s operations and its
principal activities are set out on page 1. The address of the registered office is Kings Place, 90
York Way, London N1 9GE.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102
{"FRS 102") as issued by the Financial Reporting Council, and the Companies Act 2006, and
have been prepared in accordance with certain provisions applicable to companies subject to
the smail companies’ regime.

Croydon Limited Partnership (the "Partnership”) meets the definition of a subsidiary undertaking
because it is controlled by the Company, acting in its capacity as General Partner of the
Partnership. The Companies Act 2008 and FRS 102 Section 9 - “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements” require the full consolidation of all subsidiary undertakings. However, the
Directors consider that the consolidated financial statements would not present a true and fair
view if the Partnership was to be consolidated in this way, with the interests of the other partners
(representing 99.5%) accounted for as a minority interest. As such consolidated financial
statements have not been prepared as a result of the Company's investment in Croydon Limited
Partnership.

Additionally, as set out in note 5, the Company Is alsc the parent company to a number of other
subsidiary undertakings. However, the Company is the parent undertaking of a small group and
as such is not required to prepare consclidation financial statements by viriue of s398 of the
Companies Act 2006. The Company has therefore prepared separate financial statements and
accounts for investments in subsidiaries at cost less provision for impairment.

The Company is a joint venture between Hammerson ple and Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield SE
and is equity accounted into the group financial statements of both entities both of which are
publicly available (see note 16).

The presentation currency used is sterling and amounts have been presented in round
thousands {"£000s"). The financial statements have been prepared on a histerical cost basis.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
the goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.
(b)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Going cencern

In considering going concern the Directors note that the Company has net current liabilities and
net liabilities, and no external borrowings or debt covenants. The current liabilities are primarily
due to the Croydon Limited Partnership and the Whitgift Limited Partnership, which are both
controlled by the Company. These Partnerships, together with Croydon Management Services
Limited (“CMS”), Croydon Car Park Limited, Croydon (GP2) Limited and the Company, form
the Alliance. The entities within the Alliance are co-owned by the ultimate controlling parties.

The Directors have received a letter of support from CMS which states that for a period of
12 months from the date of signing the Company's financial statements, CMS has no intention
to request the entities within the Alliance to repay amounts repayable to the entities with the
Alliance, unless those entities are able to meet their liabilities as they fall due. Furthermore, the
letter states CMS's intention and ability to provide the necessary financial support to ensure that
the Company is a going concern for at least 12 months from the date of signing of these financial
statements.

In forming an assessment as to whether CMS has the ability and intention to provide the
necessary support to the Company, the Directors have performed a detailed assessment of the
current and projected financiai position of the Alliance. The Directors have made reasonable
assumptions about the future trading performance of the Alliance, preparing two forecast
scenarios, a Base case and a Severe but plausible adverse case, which take into account the
current and near-term assessment of the Alliance’s principal risks.

The Covid-19 pandemic has significantly adversely affected the Alliance’s operations with the
imposition of restrictions including limiting footfall at the Alliance’s properties and the closure of
non-essential retail. reduced collections; and an increased level of tenant concessions and
restructuring. These factors have resulted, and are expected to continue to result, in further
downward pressure on both rents and property valuations. The Directors’ scenario modelling
has been undertaken against this backdrop and the key assumptions adopted for the scenarios
are as follows:

Base case scenario

» the disruption caused by the Covid-19 pandemic continues to ease and trading
conditions continue to improve, driven by the successful roll-out of the vaccination
programme;

+ a slow, but sustained, recovery in sales and footfall, with improving collections and
ieasing demands, with stores remaining open; and

¢ achallenging retail occupational and investment market with further tenant restructuring
and concessions to support weaker brands; and falling property valuations, principally
in 2021.



CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.
(b)

ACCOUNTING POLICLES (CONTINUED)

Going concern

Severe but plausible adverse scenario
Assumptions are as per the Base case scenario with the following additional adverse
assumptions:

s a significant resurgence of Covid-19 in late 2021 resulting in the re-imposition of
restrictions, including a three-month lockdown over the 2021/2022 winter, including the
closure of non-essential stores; and

e a further deterioration in the occupational retail market, with additional tenant
restructuring, the provision of concessions to support brands, and the impairment and
write-off of outstanding arrears. This results in lower income projections, with net rental
income on a like-for-like basis being approximately 100% lower in 2021 than in 2019.

Under both the Base case scenario and the Severe but plausible scenario, the Alliance has
sufficient liquidity on a stand-alone basis for a pericd of at least 12 months from the date of
signing these financial statements. The Alliance has significant brought forward cash, no
external borrowings or debt covenants, with discretionary capital expenditure and distributions
and resilient operational aclivities, Consequently, the Directors are satisfied that CMS has the
ability and intention to provide the necessary support to the Company and they can place
reliance on the letter of support.

In addition, the Directors note from the financial statements of the Croydon Limited Partnership
and the Whitgift Limited Partnership (the “Partnerships”) that the Limited Partners of the
Partnerships confirmed they intend to continue trading the Pannerships for a period of at least
12 months from the date of signing of these financial statements and the financial statements
of the Partnerships for the year ended 31 December 2020.

After making enquiries and taking into account the factors noted above, in particular the letter
of support from CMS, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will have
access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for a period of at least
12 months from the date of signing of these financial statements and they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

15




CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.

(c)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Net finance costs

Net finance costs include interest payable on borrowings and interest payable to related party
undertakings, net ot interest receivable on tunds invested and interest receivable from related
party undertakings, and is included in the statement of comprehensive income.

Taxation

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid {(cr recovered) using the tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in
the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing
difference.

Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments, including investments in subsidiaries and other related undertakings,
are shown at cost less provision for impairment. Partner advances which are non-interest
bearing and only repayable in the event of a sale or other disposal of the Partnership's
investment property or any interest therein or, if the Company so determines, in the event of a
refinancing of the Partnership, or on the winding-up of the Partnership, are considered equity in
nature and included within fixed assets investments. Decreases or increases in the impairment
provision occur when the carrying value of the asset increases or decreases respectively as a
result of revaluation gains or losses.

Loans receivable

Loans receivable are financial assets which are initially measured at fair value, plus acquisition
costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, after taking account of any discount on issue
and attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, borrowings are held at amortised cost, such
that discounts and costs are charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the term
of the borrowing at a constant return on the carrying value of the liability.

16



CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.

(h)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at transaction price {including transaction costs). Financial assets and liabilities are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset in the balance sheet when, and only when there
exists a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Company intends
either to seftle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets are derecognised when and only when a) the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire or are settled, b) the Company transfers to another party
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or c) the Company,
despite having retained some, but not all, significant risks and rewards of cwnership, has
transferred control of the asset to another party. Financial liabilities are derecognised only when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Critical accounting poelicies and estimation uncertainties

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and liabilities. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Estimates
and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both the
current and future periods.

The Company's critical judgement and area of estimation uncertainty is in respect of the
valuation of investments. The Company's investments include its investment in the Croydon
Limited Partnership (the "Partnership™) and in Croydon Jersey Unit Trust (the "Trust"), which are
carried in the balance sheet at historical cost less provision for impairment, which are valued by
the Directors based upon the net assets of the Partnership and the Trust in which the Company
invests.

The principal asset of the Partnership is its investment properties which are valued six monthly
by professional qualified external valuers. The principal asset of the Trust is its investment in
the Whitgift Limited Partnership, whose principal asset is its investment properties which are
also valued on a six-monthly basis. The Directors must ensure they are satisfied that the
Company's investments in the Partnership and the Trust are appropriate for the financial
statements. The basis of valuation of the investment properties held by the Croydon Limited
Partnership and the Whitgift Limited Partnership (the "Partnerships”) are set out in the notes to
the financial statements of the Partnerships for the year ended 31 December 2020, which are
publicly available.
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CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

2. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2020 2019
£000 £'000

Impairment of amounts due from related party undertakings .
{notes 6 and 7) 363 -
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the
Company's financial statements

- Current year 3 3
- Adjustment in respect of prior periods 2 (1))
5 2

368 2

The average number of employees during the year was nit (2019: nil).

The Directors did not receive any remuneration for their services from the Company in the year
(2019: £nil), having been paid by other related parties. It is deemed impractical to allocate the
remuneration between related parties for the purpose of disclosure. In addition, there were no
payments to key management personnel in either the current or preceding financial year.

3. NET FINANCE COSTS

2020 2019
£°000 £'000

Interest payable to/(receivable from):
- Hammerson plc 92 g8
- Hammerson Croydon (GP1) Limited 7 {9)
- Hammerson Croydon (GP2) Limited 7 (9)
- Hammerson plc and subsidiary undertakings 106 80
- Westfield Eurgpe Limited 106 102
Total loan interest payable - note 10 212 182
Interest receivable from Croydon (GP2) Limited - note 8 {49) (52)
Other interest receivable - (2)
163 128

The total interest receivable from Hammerson Croydon (GP1) Limited and Hammerson
Croydon {(GP2) Limited in 2019 of £18,000 included interest payable for the year ended
31 December 2019 of £3,000 offset by a reversal of interest incorrectly calculated and charged
in 2018 and earlier years of £21,000. This adjustment was not material for restatement and was
therefore included within the 2019 statement of comprehensive income.

4, TAXATION

(a) Tax charge
2020 2019

£'000 £'000
UK corporation tax
Adjustment in respect of prior years - note 4(b) 3 -
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CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

4,

{b)

(a)

(b)

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Factors affecting current tax charge

The tax assessed on the loss for the year differs from the standard rate of corporation tax of

19% (2019: 19%). The differences are reconciled below:

Loss on ordinary activities before tax
Loss at UK corporation tax rate of 19% {2019: 19%)

Effects of:
Impairment provision on investments
Impairment of amounts due from related party undertakings
Share of income of Partnerships
Group relief surrendered without charge
Under-provision relating to previous years

Total tax charge for the year

INVESTMENTS
Summary — carrying value
Note
Investment in Croydon Jersey Unit Trust' 5(c)
Investment in Croydon (GP2) Limited? 5(d)
Investment in Croydon Limited Partnership? 5(e)
Equity loan to Croydon Limited Partnership? 5(f)

Registered office:
(1) 47 Esplanade, St. Helier, JE1 0BD, Jersey
(2) Kings Place, 90 York Way, London, N1 9GE

2020 2019
£000 £000

(1,838) (243)

(349) (46)
248 21
69 -

7 25

25 -

3 -

3 -
2020 2019
£'000 £000
2,141 3,140
- 308

23 23
1,808 1,808
3,972 5,279

In addition, the Company has investments in Croydon Car Park Limited and Croydon Property
Investments Limited which have their registered office at Kings Place, 90 York Way, London N1

9GE (see notes 5{g) and 5(h)).

Summary — movement in impairment provision

Note
Investment in Croydon Jersey Unit Trust 5(c)
Investment in Croydon (GP2) Limited 5(d)

2020 2019
£000 £'000
(999) (40)
(308) (73)
(1,307) (113)
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CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

5.  INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) investment in Croydon Jersey Unit Trust

At 1 January 2019
Impairment in the year - note 5(b)

Carrying

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
Impairment in the year - note 5(b)

At 31 December 2020

Impairment

Cost provision value
£000 £000 —  E£0000
3,181 (1) 3,180

- (40) (40)
3,181 (41) 3,140

- (999) (899)
3,181 (1,040) 2,141

The Company is a 1% unit holder of the Croydon Jersey Unit Trust, a property investment unit

trust registered and resident in Jersey.

{d) Investment in Croydon (GP2) Limited

At 1 January 2019
Impairment in the year - note 5(b)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
Impaimment in the year - note 5(b)

At 31 December 2020

Impairment Carrying
Cost provision value
£000 £'000 £°000
470 (89) 381
- (73) (73)
470 {162) 308
- (308) (308)
470 (470} -

The Company has a 100% interest in the ordinary share capital of Croydon (GP2) Limited, an
investment holding company registered and resident in England and Wales.

(e) Investment in Croydon Limited Partnership

At 1 January and 31 December 2019

At 1 January and 31 December 2020

Impairment Carrying

Cost provision value
£'000 £°000 £'000
23 - 23
23 - 23

The Company has a 0.5% interest in the partners’ capital of Croydon Limited Partnership, a
property investment partnership registered and resident in England and Wales.
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CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

5. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
4] Equity loan to Croydon Limited Partnership
Partner’s
advance
£'000
At 1 January and 31 December 2018 1,808
At 1 January and 31 December 2020 1,808

The equity loans to Croydon Limited Partnership are non-interest bearing and only repayable in
the event of a sale or other disposal of the Partnership’s investment property or any interest
therein cr, if the Company so determines, in the event of a refinancing of the Partnership, or on
the winding-up of the Partnership.

(9) Investment in Croydon Car Park Limited
Impairment Carrying
Cost provision value
£ E £
At 1 January and 31 December 2019 100 - 100
Impairment in the year - (100) (100)
At 1 January and 31 December 2020 100 {100) ~

The Company has a 100% interest in the ordinary share capital of Croydon Car Park Limited, a
property management company registered and resident in England and Wales.

(h) Investment in Croydon Property Investments Limited
Impairment Carrying
Cost provision value
£ £ £
At 1 January and 31 December 2019 1 - 1
At 1 January and 31 December 2020 1 - 1

The Company has a 100% interest in the ordinary share capital of Croydon Property
Investments Limited, a dormant company registered and resident in England and Wales.
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CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

6.

RECEIVABLES: NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2020 2019
£000 £000
Loans to Croydon (GP2)} Limited 1,178 1,357

Amounts owed by Croydon (GP2) Limited bear interest at variable rates based on LIBOR and
are repayable in 2027. The increase in non-current receivables in 2020 represents interest of
£49,000 (2019: £52,000), see note 3. In addition, amounts owed by Croydon (GP2) Limited are
shown after a loss allowance provision of £228,000 (2019: £nil).

RECEIVABLES: CURRENT ASSETS

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Amocunts owed by Croydon Management Services Limited 301 359
Amounts owed by Croydon Car Park Limited 1,351 1,344
Amounts owed by Croydon (GP2) Limited - 16
Other receivables 55 4
1,707 1,723

All amounts shown under receivables fall due for payment within one year. Amounts owed by
Croydon Management Services Limited, Croydon Car Park Limited and Croydon {GP2) Limited
are non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand. All amounts are unsecured. In addition,
amounts owed by Croydon Car Park Limited and Croydon (GP2) Limited are shown after a loss
allowance provisions of £118,000 and £17,000 respectively {(2019: £nil).

CASH AND DEPOSITS

2020 2019

£'000 £000
Cash at bank 280 655
PAYABLES: CURRENT LIABILITIES

2020 2019

£°000 £'000
Amounts owed to Whitgift Limited Partnership 2,011 2,270
Amounts owed to Croydon Limited Partnership 59 5%
Other payables and accruals 79 68

2,149 2,397

The amounts owed to Whitgift Limited Partnership and Croydon Limited Partnership are
repayable on demand and are non-interest bearing. All amounts are unsecured.
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CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

10. PAYABLES: NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Loans from Hammerson pic
Loans from Hammerson Croydon (GP1) Limited
Loans from Hammerson Croydon (GP2) Limited

Loans from Hammerson plc and subsidiary undertakings
Loans from Westfield Europe Limited

L.oan balances: interest bearing

Loans from Hammerson plc
Loans from Westfield Europe Limited

Loans balances: non-interest bearing

2020 2019
£'000 £000
2,668 2,576

201 194
201 194
3,070 2,964
3,071 2,965
6,141 5,929
614 614
614 614

1,228 1,228

7,369 7,157

All loans are repayable between 2027 and 2028 and are unsecured. Interest is charged on the
interest bearing loans at variable rates based on LIBOR. The increase in non-current payables
in 2020 represents additional interest charged of £212,000 (2019: £182,000) (see note 3).

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of the Company's financial assets and liabilities are summarised by

category below:

Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost:
Equity lcans to Croydon Limited Partnership
Loans to Croydon (GP2) Limited
Amounts owed by Croydon Management Services Limited
Amounts owed by Croydon Car Park Limited
Amounts owed by Croydon (GP2) Limited
Other receivables
Cash and deposits

Financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost:
Amounts owed to Whitgift Limited Partnership
Amounts owed to Croydon Limited Partnership
Loan balances: interest bearing
Loan balances: non-interest bearing
Other payables and accruals

2020 2019
£7000 £000
1,808 1,808
1,178 1,357
301 359
1,351 1,344
- 16

55 4
280 655
4973 5,543
2,011 2,270
59 59
6,141 5,929
1,228 1,228
79 68
9,518 9,554
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CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Company's income, expense, gains and losses in respect of
financial instruments are summarised below:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Net finance costs (see note 3) 163 128
12. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

2020 2018
£'000 £000

Allotted, called up and fully paid:
250,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 250 250

13. RESERVES

The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity:

Reserve Description and purpose
Accumulated losses Cumulative profits and losses less any dividends paid
14, ADVANCES, CREDIT AND GUARANTEES

The Company did not grant any credits, advances or guarantees of any kind to its Directors
during the current or preceding year.

15. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Other than disclosed in notes 3, 5 6, 7, 9 and 10 there were nc material related party
transactions during the year or balances outstanding. The Company entered into related party
transactions or had balances outstanding with fellow related parties:

Related party Relationship

Hammerson plc An ultimate parent company
Westfield Europe Limited Immediate parent company
Hammerscn Croydon (GP1) Limited Immediate parent company
Hammerson Croydon (GP2) Limited Immediate parent company
Croydon Jersey Unit Trust Investment — see note 5(c)

Croydon (GP2) Limited Subsidiary

Croydon Limited Parthership Investment — see notes 5(e) and 5(f)
Croydon Car Park Limited Subsidiary

Croydon Property investments Limited Subsidiary

Croydon Management Services Limited  Joint venture entity held indirectly by ultimate
parent companies

Whitgift Limited Partnership Joint venture entity held indirectly by ultimate
parent companies
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CROYDON (GP1) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

186.

ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANIES AND CONTROLLING PARTIES

At 31 December 2020, 62,500 ordinary £1 shares were held by Hammerson Croydon (GP1)
Limited, 62,500 ordinary £1 shares were held by Hammerson Croydon (GFP2) Limited and
125,000 ordinary £1 shares were held by Westfield Europe Limited. These companies are
registered in England and Wales.

The ultimate controlling parties at the balance sheet date were Hammerson plc (50%),
registered in England and Wales, and Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield SE (50%) registered in
France.

The consolidated financial statements of the uftimate parent companies are available from their
registered offices:

Hammerson plc Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield SE
The Company Secretarial Department 7 Place du Chancelier Adenauer
Kings Place 75016 Paris

90 York Way France

London N1 9GE

25



Partnership registration: LP015372

CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2020

.........

FABJARW -
Ad1 23/12/2021 #302
COMPANIES HOUSE

THURSDAY



CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

REPORT OF THE GENERAL PARTNER
Year ended 31 December 2020

Croydon (GP1) Limited {the “General Partner”) submits its report and the audited financial statements
for Croydon Limited Partnership {the “Parinership”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

1.

(a)

(b}

(c}

(d)

(@

(h)

(i)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The principal activity of the Partnership is property investment and development in the United
Kingdom. The General Partner does not anticipate any significant change in the principal
activity in the foreseeable future.

Croydon Management Services Limited, a directly held subsidiary of Hammerson UK
Properties plc and Westfield Europe Limited, acts as an agent to the Partnership under the
Development and Asset Management Agreement. Under the agreement, Croydon
Management Services Limited raises invoices, collects arrears and manages the day-to-day
running of Centrale Shopping Centre, Croydon. All rental income and costs are recharged to
the Partnership through intercompany accounts on an accruals basis.

Further information relating to the business and its key risks is provided in the Strategic Report
on pages 5 to 7 together with an assessment of the impact the Covid-19 pandemic has had
on the business and how this may affect its activities in the future.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The Partnership made a loss for the financial year before partners’ interests of £132,723,000
(2019: £39,543,000). No distributions have been made during the year (2019: £nil).

Net assets for the Partnership as at 31 December 2020 were £204,484,000
(2019: £336,748,000).

DIRECTORS OF THE GENERAL PARTNER

Mr. J.A. Hodes was a Director of the General Pariner throughout the year and was in office at
the date of approval of this report.

Mr. W.S. Austin and Mr. M.R. Bourgeois were Directors of the General Partner throughout the
year and resigned as Directors of the General Partner on 11 November 2021,

Miss. A. Beattie was an Alternate Director of the General Partner throughout the year and was
in office at the date of approval of this report.

Mr. W.S. Austin and Mr. M.R. Bourgeois were Alternate Directors of the General Parther
throughout the year and resigned as Alternate Dirgectors of the General Partner on
11 November 2021.

Mr. O. Bossard resigned as a Director of the General Partner and as an Alternate Director of
the General Partner on 31 March 2020.

Mr. S.C. Parsons was appointed as a Director of the General Partner cn 31 March 2020 and
was in office at the date of approval of this report.

Mr. H. Badham and Mr. G. Peureux were appointed as Directors of the General Partner on
11 November 2021 and were in office at the date of approval of this report.

in accordance with the Articles of Association of the General Partner, the Directors are not
required to retire by rotation.

No Director has any interests in contracts entered into by the General Partner.



CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

REPORT OF THE GENERAL PARTNER (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

4.

INDEMNITY

The General Partner's ultimate controlling parties are Hammerson plc and Unibail-Rodamco-
Westfield SE. Hammerson ple has put in place qualifying third party indemnity provisions for
the benefit of the Directors of the General Partner, which were in place throughout the year
and which remain in place at the date of appraval of this report.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors of the General Partner have considered the use of the going concern basis in
the preparation of the financial statements as at 31 December 2020, and having taken into
account the existing and anticipated effects of Covid-19 and the letters of support received
from Croydon Management Services Limited and Croydon (GP1) Limited, concluded that it
was appropriate.

The letters of support state the intent to provide the necessary financial support to ensure the
Partnership is a going concern for at [east 12 months from the date of signing of these financial
statements. More information is provided in note 1{b) o the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP shall be deemed to be re-appointed as auditors for a further term
under the provisions of section 487(2) of the Companies Act 20086.

PricewaterhouseCoopers |LP have indicated their willingness to continue in office.

STATEMENT OF GENERAL PARTNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES [N RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial
Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law, as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships {Accounts)
Regulations 2008 (the “Regulations”), requires the General Partner to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the General Partner has prepared the
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of treland”, and applicable law}. Under
company law, as applied to qualifying partnerships, the General Partner must not approve the
financial statements unless it is satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period. In preparing the
financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them censistently;

» state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102,
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Partnership will continue in business.

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the Partnership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Partnership and enable it to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnership and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.



CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

REPORT OF THE GENERAL PARTNER {CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

8.

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Directors of the General Partner {the "Directors”) have determined that the Partnership’s
key stakeholders are its: partners; brands; consumers; and communities. How the Directors
engage with these stakeholders is summarised below:

Partners

The key areas of interes! for the Partners are the current and future financial performance of
the Partnership’s property interests. The particular focus in 2020 has been the impact of the
pandemic on the business and the Directors have worked closely with the Partners to ensure
alignment when supporting tenants through rent concessions and restructuring. The asset
manager provides the Directors with a quarterly update with comparisons of actual results to
budget and to highlight other areas including sales and footfall, sustainability, customer
experience and innovation. The Directors consider the views of each Partner as part of the
decision-making process about future strategy and direction.

Brands

The Partnership's relationships with its retailers, F&B and leisure tenants are important to the
Partnership's long-term success. Since the onset of the pandemic, the Directors have
recognised the need to support brands, particularly while the Partnership’s properties were
closed. The asset manager reports on the performance of brands which are discussed at the
Directors’ board meetings. During 2020, the Directors continued to focus on the impact of the
administrations and CVAs of certain retailers and brands, occupational plans and
management of the Partnership's assets. The Directors worked hard to reach fair and
reasonable agreements on rent during the lockdown periods and to reduce service charge
budgets where practicable.

Consumers

Consumer confidence over the past year has been weak, which in turn has adversely affected
spending. With the closure of non-essential retail, inevitably this has led to an increase in
online shopping. Footfall has been significantly beiow 2019 levels, although there was an
increase in Click & Collect facilities where permitted during the lockdowns. To make our
customers' lives easier, a new feature was launched in the summer on the centre's website,
which provided customers with live updates on how popular our centre was in real time, so
they knew when to visit and beat the crowds.

Offering an engaging experience is crucial for the future of physical retail. The Directors
continue to receive both quantitative and qualitative insights from the asset manager to
understand consumer needs which inform decisions on creating a desirable destination for
shopping, leisure and socialising and to inform investment decisions and identify revenue
drivers.

Communities

The Partnership’'s assets make important social and economic contributions to its community.
The pandemic has challenged families, businesses and community groups to an extent no one
could have foreseen. The Directors ensure that through the asset management team, strong
links are developed with local stakeholders to identify local needs and community projects and
maintain and boost the local economy, generate employment and business opportunities and
encourage additional inward investiment.



CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

REPORT OF THE GENERAL PARTNER (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

9. DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons who are Directors of the General Partner at the time when this report is
approved has confirmed that:

(a) sofar asthe Director of the General Partner is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the Partnership’s auditors are unaware; and

(b) the Director of the General Partner has taken all the steps that cught to have been taken
as a Director in order to be aware of any relevant audit informaticn and to establish that
the Partnership’s auditors are aware of that information.

Approved by Croyden (GP1) Limited, General Partner, and signed on its behalf

SO

H.A. Badham
Director
Date: 20 December 2021



CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STRATEGIC REPORT
Year ended 31 December 2020

Review of the business

Performance during the year

The Partnership's principal business is to develop and hoid for investment Centrale Shopping Centre
in Croydon, which was affected by the Covid-19 pandemic. This unprecedented situation has had a
significant impact, with footfall levels significantly below 2019 levels due to the closure of all
non-essential retail during continued periods of national and local lockdown.

The asset management team have worked hard to reach fair and reasonable agreements with tenants,
offering flexible repayment terms or rent waivers where appropriate. in spite of the proactive measures
taken, rent collection was significantly below historic levels. After negotiation with tenants,
approximately 81% of rent demanded in 2020 was collected at the balance sheet date, by Croydon
Management Services Limited (“CMS”) acting as agent to the Partnership.

Net rental income reduced principally as a result of increased provisioning due to the higher level of
arrears and increased uncertainty as a consequence of the pandemic. During the year, the recharge
from CMS to the Partnership for the provision against its trade receivables, increased by £505,000
{2019: £38,000) and the provision against unamortised lease incentives increased by £21,000 (2019:
£nil). The loss allowance provision against amounts due from related party undertakings increased by
£177,000 (2019: £nil).

Commercialisation income fell due to the closure of the majority of stores in periods of Covid-19
lockdown during the year. Net rental income for 2020 includes £305,000 of contingent rents calcuiated
by reference to tenants’ turnover. Net rental income for 2019 included £83,000 of contingent rents due
back to tenants as a result of an overestimate in 2018.

Reduced income levels together with an outward yield moverment have reduced the Partnership's
property valuation. This reflects store closures during the lockdown periods and reduced leasing
volumes, further exacerbated by increased leveis of CVAs and administrations.

In addition, as set out in note 8 to the financial statements, the Partnership has an indirect interest in
the Whitgift Limited Partnership {the “Whitgift LP"), which owns the Whitgift Shopping Centre in
Croydon. The Whitgift Shopping Centre was also affected by the Covid-19 pandemic and has been
operating under the same lockdown conditions as Centrale Shopping Centre referred to above.

Rent collections, as well as footfall levels, have similarly been impacted. Consequently, the Whitgift
LP’s net rental income levels for 2020 were materially lower than the prior year, and the value of its
property reduced. This has resulted in an increase in the impairment provision against the
Partnership's investments in 2020 of £98,927,000 (2019: £3,893,000).

The Partnership made an operating loss before property revaluation losses of £98,309,000
(2019: profit £594,000) and a total loss for the financial year of £132,723,000 before partners’ interests
(2019: £39,543,000). Net assets for the Partnership as at 31 December 2020 were £204,484,000
{2019: £336,748,000).

Future prospects

The impact of Covid-19 has extended into 2021. The roll-out of a vaccination programme together with
the lifting of Covid-19 restrictions should lead to a recovery as workers and shoppers return to the
centre. However, any significant re-emergence of Covid-19 or new variants thereof could also result
in the imposition of further restrictions.

It is anticipated the Partnership’'s net rental income levels and property valuations will remain
challenged in 2021. A sensitivity analysis of property valuation movements is included in note 1(k).

The Directors of the General Partner do not anticipate any significant change in the Partnership’s
principal activity in the foreseeable future.



CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

Key Performance Indicators
The Directors of the General Partner consider the following measures to be key performance
indicators for the Partnership: net rental income, property valuation and total return.

The Partnership's properties produced net rental income of £820,000 in 2020 compared with
£4,511,000 in 2019. As shown in note 7(a) to the financial statements, the Partnership incurred capital
expenditure of £23,000 (2019: £245,000) and there was a revaluation loss of £31,862,000 during the
year (2019: £37,245,000). The total property valuation at 31 December 2020 was £45,661,000 (2019:
£77,500,000). The IPD total return for the property was -40.3% (2019: -27.6%]).

Principal risks

Overview

2020 has been a year of unprecedented uncertainty and disruption, principally due to the Covid-19
pandemic. The restrictions introduced to fight the pandemic have severely affected the macro
economy and wider society. The closure of non-essential retail has adversely impacted the vast
maijority of our brands. Footfall and sales were significantly lower than the prior year and this has led
to valuation reductions, reduced rent collections and increased tenant failure.

Against this backdrop, effective risk management is critical to protect the Partnership’s income, assets
and reputation. The Directors of the General Partner (the “Directors™) review and monitor financial,
operational and reputational risks and consider these as part of the forecasting and business planning
process.

Short term

The key short-term risk facing the Partnership relates to the Covid-19 pandemic and its impact on the
business. Covid-19 restrictions, including the closure of non-essential retail, have caused severe
financial stress for much of the retail market and caused record tenant failures in the UK. The Directors
have agreed rental concessions to support tenants; however the moratorium on evictions has meant
a significant number of tenants have withheld lease payments.

The positive impact on infection and transmission levels of the lockdowns and vaccination programme
has allowed Covid-19 restrictions to be lifted from Spring 2021. This will support the recovery of the
retail market. However, should the Government introduce further national lockdowns or there is an
outbreak of Covid-19 cases in the vicinity of either the Centraie Shopping Centre or the Whitgift
Shopping Centre, there is a risk that the shopping centres could be required to close again for a period
of time.

Longer-term

The key on-going and longer-term risk facing the Partnership relates to tenant exposure and the
strength of the UK property market, the latter being impacted by increased online penetration and
tenant failures. Tenants’ covenants are monitored at the start of leasing agreements and on an
ongoing basis to minimise the risk of default. The Directors monitor the UK property market through
the analysis of market forecasts and the performance of the property assets are compared against
target returns. The Partnership has a risk forum for managing the key development risks. The current
challenges on the business presented by the Covid-19 pandemic have accentuated the significance
of monitoring changes in tenants’ covenants and the UK property market.

Approved by Croydon (GP1) Limited, General Partner, and signed on its behalf
CHAS

H.A. Badham
Director
Date: 20 December 2021
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Independent auditors’ report to the
General Partner of Croydon Limited
Partnership

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Croydon Limited Partnership's financial statements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Partnership’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its loss for the year
then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law); and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships
by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual Report™),
which comprise: the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2020; the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Partnership in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fuffilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirernents.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period
of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the General Partner’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.




However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the
Partnership's ability to continue as a going concern.

Qurresponsibilities and the responsibilities of the General Partner with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The General Partner are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowiedge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Report of the General Partner, we also considered whether the disclosures required
by the UK Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships
requires us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Report of the General Partner

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Report of the General Partner for the year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicabile legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Partnership and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Report of the General Partner.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the General Partner for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements, the
General Partner are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framewark
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The General Panner are also responsible for such internal control
as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Partner are responsible for assessing the Partnership's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the General Partner either intend to liquidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect



a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We desigh procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Partnership and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to the Companies Act 2006, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a
material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the
financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts)
Regulations 2008. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to inappropriate
journal entries and management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team
included:

¢ Discussions with management and those charged with governance, including consideration of any known or suspected
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud;

+ Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

+ Performing procedures over any unusual journal entries;

« Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability into our testing;

» Challenging assumptions made by management in determining their judgements and accounting estimates; and

« Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described abave. We are less likely to became aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resuiting from &rror, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,
or through coliusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the General Partner of the qualifying Partnership as a
bedy in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts)
Regulattons 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior censent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required to report to you if, in our opinion;

» we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the Partnership, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» certain disclosures of Directors of the General Pariner's remuneration specified by law are not made; or



s the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

8('P‘L"’L

Sonia Copeland (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Londaon

20 December 2021



CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Revenue
Rents payable and other property outgoings

Change in the provision for amounts not yet recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income

Net rental income

Administrative expenses

Increase in impairment provision on investments

Operating (loss)/profit before property revaluation losses
Revaluation losses on properties

Operating loss

Net finance costs

Loss and total comprehensive expense for the financial year

before partners’ interests

All amounts relate to continuing activities.

Note

7(a)

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
5,977 10,541

(5,014) (6,030)

(143) -

820 4511

(202) (24)
(98,927) (3,893)

(98,309) 594
(31,862) (37,245)

{130,171) (36,651)
(2,552) 2,892)
(132,723) (39,543)
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CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2020

Note 2020 2018
£'000 £000 £000 £000

Non-current assets

Investment properties 7(a) 45,661 77,500

Investments 8 211,956 310,883
257,617 388,383

Current assets

Receivables 9 22,661 25,360

Current liabilities

Payables 10 754 805

Net current assets 21,907 24 555

Total assets less current liabilities 279,524 412,938

Non-current liabilities

Payables 11 (75,040) (76,190}

Net assets 204,484 336,748

Represented by:

Partners’ equity

Partners’ capital accounts 12 100 100
Partners’ equity loans 12 361,591 361,132
Partners’ current accounts 12 (157,207) (24,484)

204,484 336,748

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Directors of the General Partner and were
signed on its behalf on 20 December 2021.

A

-

H.A. Badham
Director

Partnership registration: LP015372
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CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the vear ended 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2019

Loss and total comprehensive expense for
the financial year

At 31 December 2019
Increase in partners equity loans (note 12)

Less and total comprehensive expense for
the financial year

At 31 December 2020

Partners’ Partners’ Partners’
capital equity current Total
accounts loans accounts equity
£000 £000 £'000 £000
100 361,132 15,058 376,21
- - (39,543) (39,543)
100 361,132 (24,484) 336,748
- 459 - 459
- - (132,723) (132,723)
100 361,591 {157,207) 204,484

13



CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.

(b)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The foilowing principal accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the
current and preceding year, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of accounting

Basis of preparation

Croydon Limited Partnership is registered pursuant to the provisions of The Limited
Partnerships Act 1907. The Partnerships and Unlimited Companies (Accounts) Regulations
2008 (S1 2008/569) require certain qualifying partnerships to prepare and have audited
financial statements as required for a company by the Companies Act 2006. The nature of
the Partnership’s operations and its principal activities are set out on page 1. The address of
the registered office of the General Partner is the same as that of Hammerson plc, one of the
ultimate controlling parties, which is Kings Place, 90 York Way, London N1 9GE.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
102 ("FRS 102" as issued by the Financial Reporting Council and the Companies Act 2006.

The presentation currency used is sterling and amounts have been presented in round
thousands ("£000s"). The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for the revaluation of investment properties. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for the goods and services.

As the Partnership is not wholly-owned, it is not entitled under FRS 102 from an exemption to
prepare a cash flow statement. However, the Partnership has not been party to any cash
transactions during the current or preceding year and consequently no cash flow statement
has been presented.

The Partnership is a joint venture between Hammerson plc and Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield
SE and is equity accounted into the group financial statements of both entities both of which
are publicly available {see note 17). The Partnership has therefore taken the exemption from
the preparation of consolidated financial statements.

Going concern

In considering going concern the Directors of the General Partner (the "Directors”) initially note
that the Partnership has a strong balance sheet, with net current assets and net assets, and
no external borrowings or debt covenants. The Partnership, together with Croydon
Management Services Limited (“CMS”), Croydeon (GP1) Limited (“GP1") and entities controlled
by GP1, namely the Whitgift Limited Partnership, Croydon Car Park Limited and Croydon
(GP2) Limited, form the Alliance. The entities within the Alliance are co-owned by the ultimate
controlling parties.

The Directors have received letters of support from CMS and GP1 {the "supporting entities™)
which state that for a period of 12 months from the date of signing the Partnership’s financial
statements, the supporting entities have no intention to request the entities within the Alliance
to repay amounts repayable to the entities with the Alliance, unless those entities are able to
meet their liabilities as they fall due. Furthermore, the letters state the supporting entities’
intention and ability to provide the necessary financial support to ensure that the Partnership
is a going concern for at least 12 months from the date of signing of these financial statements.

14



CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.

(b)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Going concern (continued)

In forming an assessment as to whether the supporting entities have the ability and intention
to provide the necessary support to the Parnership, the Direclors have performed a detailed
assessment of the current and projected financial position of the Alliance. The Directors have
made reasonable assumptions about the future trading performance of the Alliance, preparing
two forecast scenarios, a Base case and a Severe but plausible adverse case, which take into
account the current and near-term assessment of the Alliance’'s principal risks, which are
explained in the Strategic Report on pages 510 7.

The Covid-19 pandemic has significantly adversely affected the Alliance's operations with the
imposition of restrictions including limiting footfall at the Aliiance’s properties and the closure
of non-essential retail; reduced collections; and an increased level of tenant concessions and
restructuring. These factors have resulted, and are expected to continue to result, in further
downward pressure on both rents and property valuations. The Directors’ scenario modelling
has been undertaken against this backdrop and the key assumptions adopted for the scenarios
are as follows:

Base case scenario

» the disruption caused by the Covid-19 pandemic continues to ease and trading
conditions continue 1o improve, driven by the successful roll-out of the vaccination
programme;

+ a slow, but sustained, recovery in sales and footfall, with improving collections and
leasing demands, with stores remaining open; and

» a challenging retail occupational and investment market with further tenant
restructuring and concessions to support weaker brands; and falling property
valuations, principaily in 2021.

Severe but plausible adverse scenario
Assumptions are as per the Base case scenario with the following additional adverse
assumptions:

» 2 significant resurgence of Covid-19 in late 2021 resulting in the re-imposition of
restrictions, including a three-month lockdown over the 2021/2022 winter, including the
closure of non-essential stores; and

» a further deterioration in the occupational retaill market, with additional tenant
restructuring, the provision of concessions to support brands, and the impairment and
write-off of outstanding arrears. This results in lower income projections, with net rental
income on a like-for-like basis being approximately 100% lower in 2021 than in 2019,

Under both the Base case scenario and the Severe but plausible scenario, the Alliance has
sufficient liquidity on a stand-alone basis for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
signing these financial statements. The Alliance has significant brought forward cash, no
external borrowings or debt covenants, with discretionary capital expenditure and distributions
and resilient operational activities. Consequently, the Directors are satisfied that the supporting
entities have the ability and intention to provide the necessary support to the Partnership and
they can place reliance on the letters of support.

Furthermore the Limited Partners have confirmed they intend to continue trading the
Partnership for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing these financial
statements.

15



CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.

(b)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Going concern (continued)

After making enquiries and taking into account the factors noted above, in particular the letters
of support from the supporting entities, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Partnership will have access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for a
period of 12 months from the date of signing of these financial statements and they continue
to adopt the gning concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Net rental income

Rental income from investment property in the United Kingdom leased out under an operating
lease is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Non-rental income such as car park or commercialisation income or contingent
rents, such as turnover rents, rent reviews and indexation, are recorded as income in the
period in which they are earned. Rent reviews are recognised when such reviews have been
agreed with tenants.

Lease incentives and costs associated with entering into tenant leases are added to the costs
of property and are amortised over the lease term or, if the probability that the break option
will be exercised is considered high, over the period to the first break option.

In accordance with amendments to FRS 102 for Covid-19 related rent concessions, changes
in rental income arising from rent concessions are recognised over the period that the change
in lease payments is intended to compensate, unless there are other significant changes to
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Movements in the impairment provisions against the trade receivables of the Partnership and
its agent, and unamortised lease incentives, are included within net rental income, as shown
in note 3, either within ‘other property outgoings’ or ‘change in the provision for amounts not
yet recognised in the statement of comprehensive income’. Further details of the criteria used
to assess the level of impairment provisions required are set out in note 1(k).

FProperty operating expenses, including any operating expenditure not recovered from tenants
through service charges, are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Included in net rental income for 2020 is £305,000 of contingent rents calculated by reference
to tenants’ turnover. Net rental income for 2019 included £83,000 of contingent rents due back
to tenants as a result of an overestimate in 2018.

Licence fee income
A fee of 50% (2019: 50%) of the gross income of Croydon Car Park Limited, a related party,
is receivable from that company, under the terms of a licence agreement. The agreement

grants Croydon Car Park Limited the right to operate the Centrale Shopping Centre car park
and the fee is included within other rental income as shown in note 3.
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CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.

(e)

(f)

(@

(h)

()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Net finance costs

Net finance costs include interest payable on borrowings and interest payable to related party
undertakings, net of interest receivable on funds invested. Croydon Management Services
Limited acts as an agent to the Partnership under a Development and Asset Management
Agreement. All bank and other interest receivable by the agent which is attributable to the
Partnership, is included within net finance costs.

Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments, including investments in subsidiaries and other related undertakings,
are shown at cost less provision of impairment. Decreases or increases in the impairment
provision occur when the carrying value of the asset increases or decreases respectively as a
result of revaluation gains or iosses.

investment properies

The Partnership applies the fair value accounting model to investment properties, being
market vaiue determined by professionally gualified external valuets. Changes in fair value
are recognised in profit or loss. All costs directly associated with the purchase and construction
of a property are capitalised.

Loans receivable

Loans receivable are financial assets which are initially measured at fair value, plus acquisition
costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, after taking account of any discount on issue
and attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, borrowings are held at amortised cost, such
that discounts and costs are charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the term
of the borrowing at a constant return on the carrying value of the liability.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Partnership becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at transaction price {including transaction costs). Financial assets and liabilities are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest methed.

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset in the balance sheet when and only when there
exists a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Partnership intends
either to settle on a net basis. or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets are derecognised when and only when a) the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire or are settled, b) the Partnership transfers to another party
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or ¢) the
Partnership, despite having retained some, but not all, significant risks and rewards of
ownership, has transferred control of the asset to another party. Financial liabilities are
derecognised only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.

(k)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting policies and estimation uncertainties

In the application of the Partnership’s accounting policies, the Directors of the General Partner
{the "Directors”) are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying value of assets and liabilities. The estimates and asscciated assumpticns are based
on histerical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from those estimates. Estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both the current and future periods.

The Partnership’s critical judgements and areas of estimation uncertainty are in respect of
property valuations, valuation of investments and impairment provisions.

Property valuations
The Partnership’s investment property, which is carried in the balance sheet at fair value, is
valued six-monthly by professionally qualified external valuers and the Directors must ensure
that they are satisfied that the valuation of the Partnership’s property is appropriate for the
financial statements.

Valuation backdrop

The valuation of the Partnership’s properties, which are carried in the balance sheet at fair
value, is the most material area of estimation due to its inherent subjectivity, reliance on
assumptions and sensitivity to market fluctuations. The outbreak of Covid-19 has impacted
many aspects of the global economy, with some real estate markets, particularly the retail
sector, having experienced lower levels of transaction activity and liquidity. Travel restrictions
have been implemented by most countries and “lockdowns” applied to varying degrees
resulting in restrictions to trading hours or closures. Local and naticnal lockdowns may
continue to be deployed as necessary across the country and the emergence of significant
further outbreaks is possible.

The pandemic and measures taken to tackie Covid-19 continue to affect economies and real
estate markets globally, impacting both the investment and occupier markets. Furthermore,
the longer-term impacts of Britain's exit from the EU on 31 January 2020 and the subsequent
conclusion of the trade deal in December 2020 are as yet unknown.

Property valuations are further complicated by both a lack of transactional evidence to support
yields, and a lack of rental evidence to support estimated rental values (ERVs}, compared to
prior years. Consequently, valuers are faced with an unprecedented set of circumstances on
which to base their assumptions and significantly greater estimation uncertainty. Key areas of
judgement highlighted in the valuation report included estimation of ERVs based on limited
data points, the consideration of appropriate levels of void costs and rent-free periods, the
impact of non-payment of rent as a consequence of Covid-19 and the basis of yield
assumptions given the lack of relevant transactions of scale.
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CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.

(k)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Critical accounting policies and estimation uncertainties (continued

Property valuations (continued)

Valuation methodology

Investment properties, excluding properties held for development, are valued by adopting the
‘investment method’ of valuation. This approach involves applying capitalisation yields to
estimated future rental income streams reflecting contracted income reverting to ERV with
appropriate adjustments for income voids arising from vacancies, lease expiries or rent-free
periods. These capitalisation yields and future income streams are derived from comparable
property and leasing transactions and are considered to be key inputs to the valuations. Where
comparable evidence of yield movement is lacking, valuers are reliant on sentiment or the
movement of less comparable assets. At 31 December 2020, the valuers have also
incorporated a number of changes to reflect the impact of Covid-19, including deductions to
rent of up to six months for non-essential retailers, reduced income due to vacancy and a
widening of yields to reflect the greater risk of tenant failure. Other factors that are taken into
account include, but are not limited to, the location and physical attributes of the property,
tenure, tenancy details, local taxes and envireonmental and structural conditions.

In the case of on-site developments, the approach applied is the ‘residual method’ of valuation,
which is the investment method of valuation as described above with a deduction for all costs
necessary to complete the development, together with a further allowance for remaining risk
and developers’ profit. Properties held for future development are valued using the highest
and best use method, by adopting the higher of the residual method of valuation allowing for
all associated risks, and the investment method of valuation for the existing asset.

The Directors have satisfied themselves that the valuation process is sufficiently rigorous and
supports the carrying value of the Partnership’s properties in the financial statements.

A sensitivity analysis showing the impact on valuations of changes in yields and market rental
income is detailed in the table below.

Investment Impact on valuation of Impact on valuation of 10%
property 100bp change in nominal change in estimated rental
valuation equivalent yield value {(ERV)
2020 Decrease Increase Increase Decrease

£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
45,661 5,404 (4,369) 4,566 {4,566)

Valuation of investments

The Partnership’s investments, as per note 8, which are carried in the balance sheet at
historical cost less provisicn for impairment, are valued by the Directors based upon the net
assets of the unit trust in which the Partnership invests. The principal asset of the unit trust is
its investment in the Whitgift Limited Partnership {“Whitgift”), whose principal asset is its
investment properties, which are valued six monthly by professicnally qualified valuers. The
Directors must ensure they are satisfied that the Partnership’s investments are appropriate for
the financial statements. The basis of valuation of the investment properties held by Whitgift,
is set out in the notes to the financial statements of Whitgift for the year ended 31 December
2020.




CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.

(k)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting policies and estimation uncertainties (continued)

Impairment provisions

The Partnership is operating in an environment of heightened uncertainty caused by
Covid-19 and consequently additional scrutiny and judgement is required in assessing revenue
recognition and the potential impairment of financial assets.

Croydon Management Services Limited {"CMS”), a directly held subsidiary of Hammerson UK
Properties plc and Westfield Europe Limited, acts as an agent to the Pantnership under the
Development and Asset Management Agreement. Under the agreement, CMS raises
invoices, collects arrears and manages the day-to-day running of Centrale Shopping Centre,
Croydon. All rental income and costs are recharged to the Partnership through intercompany
accounts cn an accruals basis.

Up to and including 31 December 2019, the collection rates achieved by CMS on behalf of the
Partnership were high, and therefore specific provision was made against trade receivables
based on risk characteristics and ageing by CMS. Given the current uncertain operating
environment, in 2020, the Directors and CMS adopted a provisioning matrix, grouping
receivables dependent on the risk level, taking into account historic default rates, credit rating,
ageing, and applying an appropriate provision percentage after taking into account VAT, rent
deposits and personal or corporate guarantees held. Where information is available to suggest
that a higher level of provisioning is required due to tenant failure or restructuring, a loss
allowance provision is made against 100% of the tenant receivable or tenant incentive.

In accordance with the terms of the Development and Asset Management Agreement with
CMS, the trade receivables due at the balance sheet date are reflected in the balance sheet
of CMS, with rental income and related costs being recharged to the Partnership. These costs
include the additional loss allowance provisions against trade receivables referred to above.

The table below presents the increase in the loss allowance provision analysed between
amounts recognised before 31 December 2020 and those for which the corresponding credit
to the statement of comprehensive income has yet to be recognised.

2020 2019
£'000 £000

Increase in loss allowance provision for amounts:
- recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 362 38
- not yet recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 143 -
505 38
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CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.
(k)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Critical accounting policies and estimation uncertainties (continued)

The Directors have adopted a similar provisioning matrix to tenant incentives, by grouping
unamortised incentives dependent on the risk level, taking into account historic default rates
and credit ratings, and applying an appropriate provision percentage. Provisioning rates
against unamortised tenant incentives are lower than those against trade receivables as the
credit risk of tenants not paying rent for future periods, and hence unamortised tenant
incentives not being recovered, is lower than the credit risk on trade receivables.

The table below presents the unamortised tenant incentives at the balance sheet date,
together with the loss allowance provision.

2020 2019

£'000 £000

Unamortised tenant incentives 33 38
Loss aliowance provision (21) -
17 38

As a result of the above, two additional sources of impairment loss have been recognised
within the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2020:

. Provision for amounts not yet recognised in the statement of comprehensive income:
The movement in the loss allowance provision in the period against trade receivables of
CMS at the balance sheet date which relate to a future reporting period and where the
corresponding liability is classified within payables of CMS, including rent and service
charge arrears. This principally relates to quarterly demands in advance in the UK which
were due on 25 December 2020. This cost is not deemed to be a direct property
operating expense, as it is not attributable to income recognised in the financial period
and has therefore been excluded from other property outgoings, but included as a
separate line item within the statement of comprehensive income within net rental
income as shown in note 3. Bad debt expense relating to amounts recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income in the period will continue to be recorded within
other property outgoings.

. Provision for impairment of unamortised tenant incentives: The movement in the loss
allowance provision in the period against unamortised tenant incentives held within
investment properties, including cash incentives and rent-free periods, included within
other property outgoings. Tenant incentive amortisation will continue to be recognised
within revenue.

In addition, the Directors have assessed the recoverability of amounts due from related
undertakings, taking into account the value of their underlying net assets. A loss allowance
provision against amounts due from related party undertakings was made as at 31 December
2020 of £177,G00 (2019: Enil).
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Year ended 31 December 2020

2.
(@

(b)

()

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT (The “Agreement”)

The amended and restated Agreement dated 17 January 2013 states that the purpose of the
Partnership is to carry out property investment and development. The Limited Partners have
confirmed they intend to continue trading the Partnership for a period of at least 12 months
from the date of signing these financial statements.

During the year Croydon {GP1) Limited acting as the General Partner had an interest of 0.5%
(2019: 0.5%) in the profits and assets of the Partnership.

At 31 December 2020, the Limited Partners had a combined interest of 99.5% (2019: 99.5%)
in the profits and assets of the Partnership in the current and preceding year, split as follows:

Westfield Acquisitions Jersey Unit Trust (No.1) (24.875%)
Westfield Acquisitions Jersey Unit Trust (No.2) (24.875%)
Hammerson Croydon Investments Limited (24.875%)
Hammerson Whitgift Investments Limited (24%)
Hammerson {Croydon) Limited (0.875%)

NET RENTAL INCOME

2020 2019

£000 £°000
Base rent 3,941 5817
Turnover rent 305 (83)
l.ease incentive recognition (12) 22
Other rental income 710 1,372
Gross rental income 4,944 7,128
Service charge income 1,033 3,413
Revenue 5,977 10,541
Service charge expenses (2,060) {4,785)
Inclusive lease costs recovered through rent (1,599) (830)
Other property outgoings® (1,355) (415)
Rents payable and other property outgoings (5,014) {(6,030)
Change in the provision for amounts not yet recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income (143) -
Net rental income 820 4,511

* Includes change in provision against trade receivable balances held by Croydon Management
Services Limited (“CMS"), for amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income of
£362,000 {(2019: £38,000). CMS acts as an agent to the Partnership and raises invoices, collects
arrears and manages the day-to-day running of Centrale Shopping Centre, Croydon. All rental income
and costs are recharged to the Partnership through intercompany accounts on an accruals basis. Other
property outgoings also includes the change in provision against unamertised tenant incentives of
£21,000 (2019: £nil}.
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4, ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Increase in loss allowance provision against amounts due from
related party undertakings (note 9)

Valuation fees

Fees payable to the Partnership's auditors for the audit of the
Partnership's and related entity’s financial statements:
- Current year
- Adjustment in respect of prior periods

Other expenses
Insurance administration credit

The Partnership had no employees in either the current or preceding financial year.

2020 2019
£'000 £000
177 -
5 11

19 19
(3) 3

16 22
13 4
9 (13)
202 24

Fees for the audit of the Partnership were £14,050 (2019: £13,390). The Partnership also pays

50% of the auditors’ fees for another related entity amounting to £5,385 (2019: £5,130).

The Directors of the General Partner did not receive any remuneration for their services from
the Partnership in the year (2019: £nil), having been paid by other related parties. It is deemed
impractical to allocate their remuneration between related parties for the purpose of disclosure.

The services of the Directors of the General Partner are of a non-executive nature.

5. INCREASE IN IMPAIRMENT PROVISION ON INVESTMENTS

Increase in impairment provision on investment in Croydon
Jersey Unit Trust (note 8)

6. NET FINANCE COSTS

Loan interest payable {note 11}
Agent interest receivable (note 1(e))

2020 2018
£000 £°000
98,927 3,893
2020 2019
£°000 £'000
2,561 2,926
(%) (34)
2,552 2,892
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7.
(a)

(b)

(c)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
The movements in the year on the valuation of properties were;
2020 20189
£000 £'000
At 1 January 77,500 114,500
Additions at cost* 23 245
Revaluation loss {31,862) {37,245)
At 31 December 45,661 77,500

* Includes increase in provision against unamortised tenant incentives of £21,000 (2019: £nil). See note
1(k) for further details.

The properties are stated at fair value at 31 December 2020, valued by professionally qualified
external valuers, Jones Lang LaSalle Limited. The valuations have been prepared in
accordance with the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards 2017 based on ceriain
assumptions as set out in note 1(k).

The historical cost of investment properties at 31 December 2020 was £117,235,000
(2019: £117,132,000).

INVESTMENTS
Impairment Carrying
Cost provision value
£000 £000 £'000
At 1 January 2019 315,707 (931) 314,776
Increase in impairment provision (note 5) - (3,893) (3,893)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 315,707 (4,824) 310,883
Increase in impairment provision (note 5) - (98,927) (98,927)
At 31 December 2020 315,707 (103,751) 211,956

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Partnership had a 98% interest in the Croydon Jersey
Unit Trust, whose registered office is 47 Esplanade, St. Helier, JE1 0BD, Jersey, and principal
activity is property investment. Croydon Jersey Unit Trust had a 99.5% interest in the Whitgift
Limited Partnership, whose registered office is Kings Place, 90 York Way, London N1 9GE,
and whose principal activity is property investment and development.
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9.

10.

1.

RECEIVABLES: CURRENT ASSETS

2020 2019

£'000 £000

Amounts owed by Croydon Management Services Limited 13,089 16,119
Amounts owed by Croydoen Car Park Limited 9,552 9,182
Amaunts owed by Croydon (GP1) Limited - 59
Other receivables 20 -
22,661 25,360

All amounts shown fall due for payment within one year and are repayable on demand.
Amounts owed by the entities listed above are non-interest bearing. All amounts owed are
unsecured. All trade receivables are accounted for within Croydon Management Services

Limited, which acts as agent to the Partnership. See note 1(k) for further detaifs.

Amounis owed by Croydon Car Park Limited and Croydon (GP1) Limited are shown after loss

allowance provisions of £118,000 and £59,000 respectivety (2019: £nil).

PAYABLES: CURRENT LIABILITIES

2020 2018

£'000 £000

Amounts due to Whitgift Limited Partnership 654 654
Amounts due to Hammerson Operations Limited 64 64
Amounts due to Hammerson UK Properties plc 10 8
Other payables and accruals 26 79
754 805

Amounts due to the entities listed above are repayable on demand and are non-interest

bearing. All amounts owed are unsecured.

PAYABLES: NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

2020 2019

£'000 £000

Amounts due to Hammerson plc 37,510 38,095
Amounts due to Westfield UK Finance Limited 37,510 38,095
75,020 76,190

Other payables 20 -
75,040 76,190

Interest is charged on all foans from Hammerson plc and Westfield UK Finance Limited at
variable rates based on LIBOR. All amounts owed are unsecured. During the year, £459,000
was reclassified from non—current payables to Partners’ equity loans to correct a
misclassification of Partner advances in prior years (see note 12). This amount is not

considered material and therefore comparative figures have not been restated.
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12. PARTNERS’ EQUITY

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Partners' capital accounts
- General Partner - -
- Limited Partner 100 100
100 100

Partners’ equity lcans

- General Partner 1,808 1,808
- Limited Partner 359,783 359,324
361,591 361,132
Partners’ current accounts (157,207) (24,484)
204,484 336,748

The Partners’ capital accounts are in proportion to each Partners’ interest. Under the Limited
Partnership Agreement, no further capital is required to be injected and no interest is payable
on the capital.

During the year £459,000 was reclassified from non—current payables te Partners’ equity loans
from the Limited Partners, to correct a misclassification of Partner advances in prior years (see
note 11}. This amount is not considered material and therefore comparative figures have not
been restated.

The equity loans are non-interest bearing, long-term funding, which is equity in nature and is
in proportion to each Partner's interest.

The Partners’ current accounts represent the cumulative profits and losses of the Partnership
after deduction of distributions to the Partners.

13. THE PARTNERSHIP AS LESSOR — OPERATING LEASE RECEIPTS

At the balance sheet date, the Partnership had contracted with tenants far the future minimum
lease receipts as shown in the table below. The data is for the period to the first tenant break

option.
2020 2019
£000 £'000
Within one year 2,292 2,948
From one to two years 1,347 1,780
From two to five years 2,747 3,098
Qver five years 1,425 2,224
7,811 10,050
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14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of the Partnership’s financial assets and liabilities are summarised by
category below:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost:
Amounts owed by Croydon Management Services Limited 13,089 16,119
Amounts owed by Croydon Car Park Limited 9,552 9,182
Amounts owed by Croydon (GP1?) Limited - 59
Other receivables 20 -
22,661 25,360
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost:
Amounts due to Whitgift Limited Partnership 654 654
Amounts due to Hammerson Operations Limited 64 64
Amounts due to Hammerson UK Properties plc 10 8
Other payables and accruals 46 79
Loans from Hammerson pic 37,510 38,095
Loans from Westfield UK Finance Limited 37,510 38,095
75,794 76,985
The Partnership’s income, expense, gains and losses in
respect of financial instruments are summarised below: 2020 2019
£000 £000
Net finance costs (see note 6) 2,552 2,892

15. ADVANCES, CREDITS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The General Partner did not grant any credits, advances or guarantees of any kind to its
Directors during the current or preceding year.

As at 31 December 2019, the Partnership had contingent liabilities of £20,000,000 relating to
potential cladding works on the Partnership's properties. In 2020, following further investigation
into the extent of the work required, this contingent liability was reassessed as at 31 December
2020 to be £3,000,000.

27



CROYDON LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2020

16.

17.

RELATED PARTIES

Other than disclosed in the statement of changes in equity and in notes 4, 5, 6, 8, 8, 10, 11
and 12, there were no material related party transactions during the current or preceding year.
In addition, the Partnership received £487.000 (2019: £992 000) in licence fees from Croydon
Car Park Limited, a related party, which is included in other rental income in note 3. There
were no payments to key management personnel in either period.

The Partnership entered into related party transactions or had balances outstanding with the

follow related parties:

Related party

Hammersoen plc
Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield SE
Croydon Jersey Unit Trust
Whitgift Limited Partnership

Croydon Management Services Limited
Hammerson (Croydon) Limited
Croydon {(GP1) Limited

Hammerson UK Properties plc

Croydon Car Park Limited
Hammerson Operations Limited

Hammerson Croydon Investments Limited
Hammerson Whitgift Investments Limited
Westfield UK Finance Limited

Westfield Acquisiticns Jersey Unit Trust (No.1)
Westfield Acquisitions Jersey Unit Trust (No.2)

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES

Relationship

Ultimate parent company

Ultimate parent company

Investment (see note 8)

Joint venture entity held indirectly by
ultimate parent company (see note 8)
Joint venture entity held indirectly by
ultimate parent company

Limited Partner

General Partner

Indirect subsidiary of an ultimate parent
company

Subsidiary of General Partner

Indirect subsidiary of an ultimate parent
company

Limited Partner

Limited Partner

Indirect subsidiary of an ultimate parent
company

Limited Partner

Limited Partner

The Partners listed in note 2 are the immediate controlling parties of the Partnership. The
ultimate controlling parties at the balance sheet date were Hammerson plc (50%}), which is
registered in England and Wales and Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield SE (50%), which is
registered in France.

The consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent companies are available from
their registered offices:

Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield SE
7 Place du Chancelier Adenauer

Hammerson plc
The Company Secretarial Department.

Kings Place 75016
90 York Way Paris
London N1 8GE France
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